
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

AGENDA 
 

Virtual Meeting – Zoom 
(Winnebago County YouTube Live) 

 
Thursday, March 11, 2021 

6:00 p.m.  
 

The Winnebago County Board Chairman has determined that an in-person meeting is not 
practicable or prudent because of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
1. Call to Order  .............................................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance .......................................Board Member Fred Wescott 
 
3. Agenda Announcements ............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ............................................................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – None  
B. Presentation –  Annual Report for 2020 Operations at Winnebago County Animal Services 

by Brett Frazier, Administrator 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None  

 
6. Approval of Minutes ................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of February 11, 2021 minutes 
B. Layover of February 25, 2021 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda .......................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Auditor’s Report – None 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30 day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
A. North Park Public Water District Board    

1. Brett Hruby (New Appointment), Roscoe, Illinois, February 2021 – February 2026 
B. Harlem-Roscoe Fire District Board 

1. Al Bach Sr. (Reappointment), Roscoe, Illinois, April 30, 2021 – April 30, 2024 
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees .................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

 
A. Finance Committee .................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Extending the Deadline for Filing Applications for the Senior Citizens 

Assessment Freeze Homestead Exemption 
3. Resolution Opposing State Reductions to LGDF Revenue 
4. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Emergency Rental Assistance 

Program to be Laid Over 
5. Budget Ordinance to Fund Winnebago County CJCC Program to be Laid Over 
6. Budget Ordinance for Vehicle Replacement to be Laid Over 
7. Resolution Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement Between the County of 

Winnebago and City of Rockford for the U.S. Department of the Treasury Emergency 
Rental Assistance Program  
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. SU-04-20  A Special Use Permit (for the Purpose of Amending a Prior Approved SUP) 
for a Winery Accessory to a Vineyard in the AG, Agricultural Priority District for 
property that is commonly known as 8877 State Line Road, South Beloit, IL 61080 in 
Roscoe Township, District 4. 

2. SU-05-20  A Special Use Permit (for the Purpose of Amending a Prior Approved SUP) 
for Outdoor Entertainment to allow Outdoor Musical and Non-Musical Events in the 
AG, Agricultural Priority District for property that is commonly known as 8877 State 
Line Road, South Beloit, IL 61080 in Roscoe Township, District 4. 

3. Committee Report  
 

C. Economic Development Committee ................................... Jas Bilich, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution to Change Hours of the County Clerk’s Office on Election Day 
3. Resolution Awarding Bids for Uniform Rental Services 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. (21-004) Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Local Public Agency Agreement for 

Federal Participation for Rehabilitation of the Alpine Road Bridge over Forest Hills Road 
and for Appropriating the Local Share of Funds. (Section 19-00620-00-BR) 
Total Cost:  $4,070,000              C.B. District: 17 & 20  
Federal:       $3,256,000 
County        $814,000 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Animal Services Ordinance Amending Section 14-116 Fee Schedule Laid Over from the 

February 25, 2021 Meeting 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

 
10. Unfinished Business…………………………….…………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
11. New Business…………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
12. Announcements & Communications ................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 

A. Correspondence (see packet)  
 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
Next Meeting:  Thursday, March 25, 2021 



 

  
Awards,  

Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 

 
 



 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 



























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 





 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: March 8, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli recommends the following person(s) to 
serve as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Brett Hruby of Roscoe, Illinois to serve filling an unexpired term from February 2021 to 
February 2026 on the North Park Water District Board. 
 
 

About the North Park Water District 
Location:  1350 Turret Drive, Machesney Park, IL 
Service Description:  Provide water to a population of 33,000 and serves over 12,000 households 

and businesses in the Machesney Park, Roscoe, and Loves Park area. 

Board Composition:  Three trustees appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board.  No more than two of the Board 
Members may be affiliated with the same political party. 

Origin of Entity: Public Corporation chartered on May 9, 1955 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Revenue from charges to service for water 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

None Known 

Compensation: $1,200 per year 

 





1

Karen Elyea

From: Joseph Chiarelli
Sent: Tuesday, February 2, 2021 8:44 AM
To: Karen Elyea
Subject: FW: North Park Water Board of Trustees Appointment - Brett Hruby
Attachments: January 2021 Resume - Hruby.pdf

 
 
From: Kelly Saunders <KSaunders@northparkwater.org>  
Sent: Friday, January 29, 2021 12:52 PM 
To: Joseph Chiarelli <Joe@WinCoIL.us> 
Subject: North Park Water Board of Trustees Appointment - Brett Hruby 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 
links, especially from unknown senders. 

  
Dear Chairman Chiarelli,  
  
I had spoken with you a few weeks back regarding a vacancy on our Board due to the unexpected passing of one of our 
Trustees in December. I am very pleased to inform you that our Board has identified an exceptional candidate for your 
consideration and that of the County Board. The candidates name is Brett Hruby, and he lives and works within our 
service area. He recently attended a North Park Water meeting as a guest, and is very interested in becoming a member 
of our Board. He has had community service experience in the past as the President of the Genoa Township Park Board 
and is familiar with the functions and processes of Board appointment. Additionally, Mr. Hruby works at the Kinnikinnick 
CCSD #31 where he has been the Chief School Business Official for the last 20 years. With extensive knowledge in public 
finance and policy we believe his experience and expertise will be a great asset to our Board of Trustees. I’ve attached 
his resume for your reference, which includes his contact information.  
  
Please let me know if you need any additional information or if you have any questions or concerns.  
  
Thanks so much,   
  
Kelly Saunders 
North Park Public Water District|Chief Executive Officer 
Office: 779.210.3080| ksaunders@northparkwater.org 
  



BRETT A. HRUBY 
12151 Love Rd 

Roscoe, Illinois 61073 
(815) 509-7128 

 
EDUCATION 
Master of Science      Northern Illinois University - Educational Administration (December 2001) 
Bachelor of Science   Northern Illinois University - Geography - Plant & Soil emphasis (May 1987) 

ENDORSEMENTS 
Type 75 - School Business Management (December 2001) 

EXPERIENCE 
Chief School Business Official (November 2001-Present) Kinnikinnick CCSD #131 (Roscoe, IL) 
 - Oversight and management of all aspects of school district finances in 
  conjunction with the District Superintendent 

School Business Management Internship (2001) Genoa-Kingston CUSD #424 (Genoa, IL) 
- enrollment and staffing projections 
- referendum planning and passage 
- tax rates, EAV, and homeowner impact 
- investment, cash flow, and bonding 
- budget and levy cycles 

Computer Technician (1998-2001) Genoa-Kingston CUSD #424 (Genoa, IL) 
- troubleshoot, repair, and maintain district computing hardware 
- test, evaluate, and install software programs 
- LAN setup and maintenance 
- assist in district wireless networking 

Head of Maintenance (1990-2001) Genoa-Kingston High School (Genoa, IL) 
- responsible for all areas of building and grounds maintenance including  

electrical, plumbing, remodeling, and general upkeep 
 - assist in management of district life safety and construction projects 

- supervision of permanent and seasonal staff members in daily custodial tasks and 
summer rehab of district buildings for the upcoming school year 

Graduate Teaching Assistant (1987-1989) Northern Illinois University    
Department of Geography (DeKalb, IL) 
- instruction and evaluation of undergraduate and graduate students in 

environmental science and statistical research coursework 
- development of curriculum for soil science laboratory 
- independent research in plant/soil relationships 

Maintenance Assistant (1978-1990) Genoa-Kingston CUSD #424 (Genoa, IL) 
- minor electrical and plumbing repair  
- daily building upkeep 

COMMUNITY SERVICE 
President, Genoa Township Park Board (1995-1997) 
Genoa-Kingston High School Student Council Assistant (1995-2001) 
Genoa-Kingston Athletic and Music Booster Club Assistant (1978-2001) 

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIP 
Illinois Association of School Business Officials 
The Association of School Business Officials International 

References available upon request 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: March 11, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Frank Haney 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Frank Haney recommends the following person(s) to serve 
as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Al Bach of Roscoe, Illinois, to serve a 3-year term from April 2021-April 2024 on the Harlem-
Roscoe Fire Protection District Board. 
 

About the Harlem-Roscoe Fire Protection District 
Location:  10544 Main Street 
Service Description:  Provide fire emergency, medical and other life safety services to Machesney 

Park, Village of Roscoe and unincorporated area 

Board Composition:  Three trustees, appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board 

Origin of Entity: Fire Protection District AT (70 ILCS 705/1) 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

District levies and annual property tax, charges for services and replacement 
tax 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 



2/24/21 
 
Good morning, 
 
I am responding as a request for my interest in continuing as a Trustee of the Harlem Roscoe Fire 
District. I love the whole package of what is involved with being a Trustee. From the administration 
duties to the financial responsibilities to the involvement with the whole Team. I would greatly 
appreciate being reappointed to my position as trustee. 
Looking forward to talking to the Chairman about the process. 
 
Thank You, 
  
Al Bach 

 
 
 
 



                                      
                                      
                                     HARLEM-ROSCOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
                                  
                                        P.O. BOX 450 * ROSCOE, ILLINOIS  61073-0450  
                                                   Administration # (815) 623-7867    Fax # (815) 623-8831 

 

 
 

  
 
Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
404 Elm Street 
Room 533 
Rockford IL 61101 
 
 
Ref: Fire District Appointment 
 
 
Mr. Chairman, 
 
Mr. Al Bach’s appointment to our Fire District Board is due to expire on April 30, 2020. Mr. Bach has 
been a positive proactive trustee for the district over the past 9 years and has expressed a strong interest 
to be reappointed. Over these past 9 years, Mr. Bach has been active, and involved with obtaining 
continuing education for himself to serve the district in the trustee position even better. He continues to 
show a commitment with continuous support and dedication for us to achieve our goals and see that we 
hold true to our mission and vision statements. His background in business is also an indication of his 
approach to this district. He is an open minded individual with the interest of our district both financially 
and the service we provide in the forefront of his mind. Our board has a history of transparency, which I 
strongly believe is the foundation for our success. This is evident with the support we receive from the 
members of the communities we serve.  I would appreciate your support and recommendation to 
reappoint him to another three-year term to our fireboard so that we may continue to build upon our 
goals and commitment to the district.  An individual who shows this type of support and commitment to 
the position of trustee, allows us to be who we are and remain a proactive district in emergency services. 
I thank you for your consideration and quick attention to my request. I ask should you have any 
questions please don’t hesitate to call me, and I look forward to working with you in the near- and long-
term future. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Donald Shoevlin, 
Fire Chief 
Harlem-Roscoe Fire Protection District 
 

“A Progressive Fire Department providing a Professional level of service.” 

 
Donald Shoevlin 

Fire Chief 
 

 

 





 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary 

ResExSummary 20.1 version 

Prepared By: Tom Hodges – Supervisor of Assessments 

Committee: Finance Committee 

Committee Date: March 4, 2021 

Resolution Title: Resolution Extending the Deadline for Filing Applications for the Senior Citizens 
Assessment Freeze Homestead Exemption       

County Code: 2021 CR     

Board Meeting Date: March 11, 2021   

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?     N/A                Appropriation Amount:   N/A 

If not, explain funding source:   N/A 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A    Budget Impact:   N/A 

Background Information:  The deadline for filing applications for the Senior Citizens Assessment 
Freeze Homestead Exemption  is  set  by  statute  as  being  July  1st  of  each  taxable year  (35  ILCS  
200/15‐172). Said statute allows for a county to establish a deadline that is different than July 1st 

(35  ILCS  200/15‐172  (c)).  Each  year,  the  Supervisor  of  Assessments  office  see  a  significant  
increase in counter traffic during the application filing period as qualified applicants often require 
assistance in completing the application. Senior Citizens are identified by the Center for Disease 
Control and Prevention as being of “higher risk” from Covid‐19 and are recommended to avoid 
crowds when possible. By extending the deadline date of the exemption in question, from July 
1st  2021  to  October  1st  2021,  there  will  be  a  greater  window  of  opportunity  for  qualified  
applicants  to  file  the  application  which  will  minimize  the  occasions  of  high  concentration  
gatherings of “higher risk” individuals. This action will not adversely affect or delay the tax cycle  
for the 2021 taxable year. 

Recommendation: The Supervisor of Assessments recommends extending the deadline for filing 
Senior Citizen Assessment Freeze Homestead Exemption applications  for  the 2021  taxable year 
from July 1, 2021 to October 1, 2021. 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  The dates in the resolution prepared by the State’s Attorney’s office for the 2020 
assessment year have been updated to reflect the 2021 assessment year.  

Follow‐Up: N/A 

Supervisor of Assessments | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319‐ 4468  |  Email: thodges@wincoil.us     



Submitted by: Jaime Salgado, District 12 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: FINANACE COMMITTEE 

 
2021 CR 

 
RESOLUTION EXTENDING THE DEADLINE FOR FILING 

APPLICATIONS FOR THE SENIOR CITIZENS ASSESSMENT FREEZE 
HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION 

 
WHEREAS, the deadline for filing applications for the Senior Citizen Assessment Freeze 

Homestead Exemption is set by statute as being July 1st of each taxable year (35 ILCS 200/15- 
172); and 

 
WHEREAS, each year many senior citizen taxpayers in Winnebago County prefer to file 

their applications for the Senior Citizen Assessment Freeze Homestead Exemption in person at 
the Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments Office; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention has identified adults over 60 

years old as being at “higher risk” from COVID-19 and recommends that persons at higher risk 
avoid crowds as much as possible to reduce their risk of being exposed to the virus; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Property Tax Code provides that a county may establish a date for the 

submission of senior citizen assessment freeze homestead exemption applications within the 
county that is different than July 1st (35 ILCS 200/15-172(c)); and 

 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments Thomas Hodges has advised 

that extending the deadline for filing senior citizen assessment freeze homestead exemption 
applications for the 2021 taxable year (the 2021 taxes payable in 2022) from July 1, 2021 to 
October 1, 2021 will not delay the tax cycle for the 2021 taxable year and recommends it be so 
extended; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Finance Committee finds that extending the deadline for filing senior 

citizen assessment freeze homestead exemption applications for the 2021 taxable year from July 
1, 2021 to October 1, 2021 will likely reduce the concentration of persons at “higher risk” from 
gathering at the Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments Office; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Finance Committee finds it is in the best interests of the citizens of 

Winnebago County, Illinois to extend the deadline for filing senior citizen assessment freeze 
homestead exemption applications for the 2021 taxable year from July 1, 2021 to October 1, 
2021. 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the deadline for filing senior citizen assessment freeze homestead 
exemption applications in Winnebago County, Illinois for the 2021 taxable year (the 2021 taxes 
payable in 2022) is hereby extended from July 1, 2021 to October 1, 2021. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Resolution to Winnebago County Supervisor of 
Assessments Thomas Hodges. 

Respectfully submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE

Jaime Salgado, Chairperson Jaime Salgado, Chairperson 

Steve Schultz Steve Schultz 

John Butitta John Butitta 

Paul Arena Paul Arena 

Joe Hoffman Joe Hoffman 

Jean Crosby Jean Crosby 

 Keith McDonald Keith McDonald 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, this  day of March, 2021. 

Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman of 
the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois ATTEST: 

Lori Gummow, Clerk of the 
County Board of the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  3-4-2021 
Resolution Title:      RESOLUTION OPPOSING REDUCTIONS TO LGDF REVENUE 
County Code:         N\A 
Board Meeting Date:    3-11-2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    N\A                          Appropriation Amount:   $ 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                                Budget Impact:    

 
 
Background Information: Winnebago County urges the General Assembly and the Governor 
    to protect and preserve existing levels of LGDF revenue and any  
    other state-collected local government revenues that are shared  
    with counties to provide appropriate levels of service to their  
    residents. 
 
 
Recommendation:   Administration supports this resolution 
 
 
 
Contract/Agreement:  N/A 
 
 
 
Legal Review:    Lafakeria Vaughn 
 
 
 
Follow-Up:   N/A 

         

http://www.wincoil.us/


         COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
                  March 11, 2021 

 
RESOLUTION  

OF THE 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2021 CR _______ 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
SPONSORED BY: JAIME SALGADO  

 
 

RESOLUTION OPPOSING REDUCTIONS TO LGDF REVENUE 
 
 
WHEREAS, counties provide fundamental and important services to their residents including, 
but not limited to, justice and public safety services, transportation infrastructure, community 
health services, human services, parks and recreation opportunities and election administration; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the State of Illinois has a long-standing tradition of helping to support these local 
services through the collection and distribution of tax revenues on behalf of counties; and 
 
WHEREAS, counties rely on these shared revenues in order to invest in services that residents 
cannot, nor should not, do without; and 
 
WHEREAS, these shared revenues are the result of a good faith historical partnership between 
the state and county governments in Illinois; and 
 
WHEREAS, since the State Income Tax was adopted in 1969, the state has shared a percentage 
of total income tax collections through the Local Government Distributive Fund (LGDF) with 
counties and municipalities in recognition that local governments are essential service providers 
for Illinois residents who live, work and play at the local level; and 
 
WHEREAS, Governor JB Pritzker has proposed that the State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2022 State 
Budget include a 10% reduction in the amount of LGDF revenue distributed to counties; and  
 
WHEREAS, this revenue reduction is being proposed at a time when counties are already 
expending additional funds on the COVID-19 emergency response. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that Winnebago County urges the General 
Assembly and the Governor to protect and preserve existing levels of LGDF revenue and any 
other state-collected local government revenues that are shared with counties to provide 
appropriate levels of service to their residents. 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
 AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
_________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado, Chairman          Jaime Salgado, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Steve Schultz, Vice Chairman      Steve Schultz, Vice Chairman 
 
_________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Paul Arena              Paul Arena 
 
_________________________________         ____________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman              Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________    ____________________________________ 
Jean Crosby        Jean Crosby 
 
________________________________    _____________________________________ 
Keith McDonald       Keith McDonald 
 
__________________________________       _____________________________________ 
John Butitta          John Butitta 
 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _________________, 2021. 
 
 
                      _______________________________________  
                                                                                                     Joseph Chiarelli 

          Chairman of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      
    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 

Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:  March 4th, 2021 

Resolution Title:      Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Emergency  
    Rental Assistance Program 

County Code:         Annual Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:    March 11th, 2021 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                Appropriation Amount:   $8,376,029 

If not, explain funding source:    U.S. Department of the Treasury 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:       0311                         Budget Impact:       Neutral 

 
Background Information: Winnebago County has received a federal grant to help its citizens  
    who have been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic, with rental  
    assistance. The county will be working with the City of Rockford to  
    distribute the assistance. This budget amendment will create a  
    budget for the program including, salaries, equipment, rent, utilities,  
    and assistance. This program is budget neutral. 
 
Recommendation:   Staff Concurs 
 
 
Contract/Agreement:  Grant Request on file with the U.S. Department of the Treasury 
    Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Rockford 
 
Legal Review:   Lafakeria Vaughn   
 
 
Follow-Up:   Expenditures are subject to a compliance audit  
    U.S. Department of the Treasury 

         

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2021 Fiscal Year Finance: Mar 4, 2021 
 Lay Over: Mar 11, 2021 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Mar 25, 2021 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2021 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, Winnebago County has received a federal grant to help its citizens who have 
been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic, with rental assistance. The county will be working 
with the City of Rockford to distribute the assistance. This budget amendment will create a 
budget for the program including, salaries, equipment, rent, utilities, and assistance. This 
program is budget neutral. 
  
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 at its September 24, 2020 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2021-004 Emergency Rental Assistance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  



2 
 

 
 
   

 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



2/25/2021

Finance Dave Rickert

0311

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

61100 41110 Regular Salaries $0 $0 $0 $101,339 $101,339

Total Personnel: $101,339

61100 41999 Contingency $0 $0 $0 $3,000 $3,000
61100 42110 Supplies $0 $0 $0 $18,095 $18,095
61100 42115 Non-Capital Office Equipment $0 $0 $0 $45,868 $45,868
61100 42491 Software Licensing Fee $0 $0 $0 $53,000 $53,000
61100 43220 Postage $0 $0 $0 $8,500 $8,500
61100 43155 Contract Staff Non Medical $0 $0 $0 $299,360 $299,360
61100 43190 Other Professional Services $0 $0 $0 $174,398 $174,398
61100 43192 Rent Assistance Prog $0 $0 $0 $7,554,283 $7,554,283
61100 43193 Utility Assistance Prog $0 $0 $0 $77,352 $77,351
61100 43210 Telephone $0 $0 $0 $6,435 $6,435
61100 46310 Gas & Heating Oil $0 $0 $0 $500 $500
61100 43620 Electricity $0 $0 $0 $1,700 $1,700
61100 43630 Water $0 $0 $0 $200 $200
61100 43810 Building Rental $0 $0 $0 $12,000 $12,000

Total Supplies: $8,254,690

61100 46500 Office & Furniture Equipment $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $20,000
Total Capital: $20,000

$0
Total Expenses: $8,376,029

$0
Revenue $0

61100 32110 Federal Operating Grant $0 $0 $0 $8,376,029 $8,376,029

Total Revenue:

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Federal Grant

AMENDMENT NO:

SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2021 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:

DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Winnebago County has received a Federal Grant for emergency rental assistance in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Winnebago County is working with the City of Rockford to distribute the relief funds. This grant includes funds for staff, 

equipment, admin support,  utilites, and relief funds.

2021-004

61100DEPT. BUDGET NO.

2021

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      
    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 

 

 

Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:  March 9th, 2021 

Resolution Title:      Budget Ordinance to Fund Winnebago County CJCC Program 

County Code:       Not Applicable  

   

Board Meeting Date:    March 11th, 2021 

 
Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    No                                          Appropriation Amount:   $64,024 

If not, explain funding source: Fund 0101            Public Safety Sales Tax Fund    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   To be assigned                 Budget Impact:                  $4,024 

 

Background Information: Winnebago County wishes to establish and support a Criminal  
    Justice Coordinating Council Program.  This program would provide 
    funding and resources for one full time position and would be  
    responsible for advancing solutions to Winnebago County’s  
    Criminal Justice System. 

 
 
Recommendation:   Staff Concurs 
 
Contract/Agreement:  Not Applicable  
 
Legal Review:     Not Applicable 
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2021 Fiscal Year Finance: Mar 9, 2021 
 Lay Over: Mar 11, 2021 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Mar 25, 2021 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2021 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, Winnebago County would like to establish the position of Criminal Justice 
Coordinating Counsel to provide an ongoing collaborative initiative for Winnebago County 
criminal justice stakeholders, to work to reduce crime and coordinate effective deployment of 
resources for Winnebago County’s most at-risk populations. In addition, this position should 
generate fees that may partially offset costs, see attachment (B). 
  
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 at its September 24, 2020 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2021-005 Criminal Justice Coordinating Counsel 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      



2 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE) (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO,
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

PAUL ARENA PAUL ARENA 

STEVE SCHULTZ STEVE SCHULTZ 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN BUTITTA JOHN BUTITTA 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



2/25/2021

County Board Joe Chiarelli

0101

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

40128 41110 Regular Salaries $0 $0 $0 $45,500 $45,500
49200 41241 Fica-Employer Contribution $0 $0 $0 $3,481 $3,481
49300 41231 IMRF - Employer Contribution $0 $0 $0 $4,300 $4,300
40128 41211 Health Insurance - Employer Contr $0 $0 $0 $5,724 $5,724
40128 41221 Life Insurance - Employer Contr $0 $0 $0 $20 $20

40128 42491 Program Software $0 $0 $0 $600 $600
40128 43190 Other Professional Services $0 $0 $0 $3,200 $3,200
40128 43310 Travel $0 $0 $0 $600 $600
40128 43943 Conferences/Employee Training $0 $0 $0 $600 $600

40122 43190 Other Professional Services $391,120 $0 $391,120 ($20,000) $371,120

$0
Revenue $0

0101 29100 Fund Balance $0 $0 $0 $4,024 $4,024
40128 32140 City, St, Local Gov Pymts $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $10,000
40128 39990 Other Unclassified Revenue - Prog Mgmt Rev $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $30,000

($0) $0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Public Safety Sales Tax

AMENDMENT NO:

SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2021 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:

DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$4,024 

To establish the position of Director of the Chairman's Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives. This position will be responsible for 

advancing solutions to Winnebago County's criminal justice system challenge by looking at the system as a whole. By doing his the 

position will enhance he efficiency and effectiveness of  our justice system.

2021-005

40128DEPT. BUDGET NO.

2021

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT



Awarded Year Grant Amount Term

2021 FEMA Public Assistance 16,298.00$         Hourly 

2021 Restore, Reinvest, Renew (R3 funding) 520,790.00$       Hourly 

2021 Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority  Community-Based Violence Intervention Program 195,923.00$       12 months

2021 US Department of Justice-Bureau of Justice Assistance-Project Safe Neighborhoods 2020 465,668.00$       27 months

2021 Technical Assistance - SAMSHA/PRA, Inc. Sequential Intercept Model Mapping Workshops* -$                     6 - 9 months

2020 Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority  Community-Based Violence Intervention Program 195,923.00$       12 months

2020 US Department of Justice-Corona Virus Emergency Supplemental Funding Program 572,968.00$       Hourly 

2019 Technical Assistance - Ohio University 2-day training (Ed Latessa)* -$                     2 days

2019 Technical Assistance - Ohio Risk and Needs Assessment 2-day community training* -$                     2 days

2019 US Department of Justice-Bureau of Justice Assistance-Project Safe Neighborhoods 2018 904,052.00$       30 months

2019 US Department of Justice-Bureau of Justice Assistance-Project Safe Neighborhoods 2019 462,187.00$       25 months

2019 Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority  Community-Based Violence Intervention Program 193,361.00$       12 months

2019 Edward Byrne JAG (Motorola Radios) 177,832.00$       Hourly 

3,527,170.00$   

*Technical Assistance awards, no $. Term is the time TA is provided 

Attachment B











































 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



 
Attachment 

 ZONING COMMITTEE  
OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 

 March 11, 2021  
 
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......……………...…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

     PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

  TO BE VOTED ON:   

1. SU-04-20 A SPECIAL USE PERMIT (FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING A 
PRIOR APPROVED SUP) FOR A WINERY ACCESSORY TO A VINEYARD IN THE 
AG, AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT, requested by Edison and Heidi Wirth, 
on behalf of Wirth Group, LLC, property owner, represented by Ian Linnabary, attorney, 
for the property that is commonly known as 8877 State Line Road, South Beloit, IL 61080 
in Roscoe Township. 
PIN: 04-01-200-005 C.B. District: 4 
Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: N/A 
ZBA Recommends:  APPROVAL w/CONDITIONS (6-0) 
ZC Recommends:     APPROVAL w/CONDITIONS (5-0) 

   
2. SU-05-20 A SPECIAL USE PERMIT (FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING A 

PRIOR APPROVED SUP) FOR OUTDOOR ENTERTAINMENT TO ALLOW 
OUTDOOR MUSICAL AND NON-MUSICAL EVENTS IN THE AG, 
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT, requested by Edison and Heidi Wirth, on 
behalf of Wirth Group, LLC, property owner, represented by Ian Linnabary, attorney, for 
the property that is commonly known as 8877 State Line Road, South Beloit, IL 61080 
in Roscoe Township. 
PIN: 04-01-200-005 C.B. District: 4 
Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: N/A 
ZBA Recommends:  APPROVAL w/CONDITIONS (6-0) 
ZC Recommends:    APPROVAL w/CONDITIONS (5-0) 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

3.    COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; 
not intended as a public notice):  

 
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, April 13, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of     
     the County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting 

is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, March 24, 2021, at 5:00 p.m. in a TBD location. 
  
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

   



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Winnebago County Clerk | 404 Elm St, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4250  Fax: (815) 319-4251 

 

 
Prepared By:  Lori Gummow 
Committee:     Operations and Administrative 
Committee Date:   March 4, 2021 
Resolution Title or Ordinance Title: Resolution to Change Hours of the County Clerk’s Office on 
Election Day 
County Code:  55 ILCS 5/3-2007 
Board Meeting Date:  March 11, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?                                    Appropriation Amount:                    
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                               Budget Impact:  $ 0 

 
Background Information:   
 
To facilitate the Consolidated Election, the Clerk’s Office will be closed to all other business. This is a 
customary practice on Election Day. All Deputy Clerks will be working behind the scenes to assist voters, 
poll workers and election staff.  
 
 
Recommendation:    
 
 
 
 
Contract/Agreement:     
 
 
 
 
Legal Review: Charlotte LeClercq  
 
 
 
 
Follow-Up:    

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by:  Keith McDonald  County Board Meeting: March 11, 2021 
                          

RESOLUTION 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 

Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2021 CR 
 

 
RESOLUTION TO CHANGE HOURS OF THE COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE 

ON ELECTION DAY 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, may change the 
hours of operation of the office of the County Clerk by resolution passed at a regular meeting of 
the County Board pursuant to 55 ILCS 5/3-2007; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County Clerk is an Election Authority pursuant to 10 ILCS 5/1-3; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the date of the Consolidated Election is April 6, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, Public Act 98-1171 was signed into law effective June 1, 2015, requiring 
Election Authorities to allow same day voter registration in their offices on Election Day; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board finds that the County Clerk’s office shall be engaged in 

the duties of an Election Authority on April 6, 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board finds that the County Clerk will not be able to perform its 

normal duties other than the primary duties of the Election Authority due to the election on April 
6, 2021. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the County Clerk’s office of the County of Winnebago shall not 
perform any duties other than those pertaining to the Consolidated Election on April 6, 2021, and 
the County Clerk’s office shall be closed to all other services on April 6, 2021, with the 
exception of election-related services. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk shall publish and post notice of 
this change in services. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its full adoption and completion of the aforementioned. 
 

 
 



Respectfully submitted, 
Operations and Administrative Committee 

 
AGREE      DISAGREE 

      
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman    Keith McDonald, Chairman 
 
_____________________________   ___________________________ 
John Butitta      John Butitta 

 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Jean Crosby      Jean Crosby     
 
_____________________________   _____________________________  
Paul Arena      Paul Arena 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________  
Joe Hoffman      Joe Hoffman  
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 

 Dorothy Redd      Dorothy Redd  
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 

 Jaime Salgado      Jaime Salgado 
  
 
 
 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, this _____ day of __________________________, 2021. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

Purchasing Department | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 Room 202 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4380  |  Email: purchasing@wincoil.us     

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
Prepared By: Purchasing on behalf of Facilities and the Highway Department 
Committee:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:  March 4, 2021 
Resolution Title:  Resolution Awarding Bids for Uniform Rental Services   
County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance      
Board Meeting Date:  March 11, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?  Yes                                                            Appropriation Amount:    
If not, explain funding source:    
 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   FACILITIES 12000-43960                         Budget Impact:   Decrease  
                                               HIGHWAY 46100-43890 

 
Background Information:   The existing 5 year Uniform Rental Services contract was due for Re-
Bid.  The Purchasing Department sent out Invitations for Bid for Uniform Rental Services for both 
the Facilities and Highway Departments.  The Bid opening took place on January 20, 2021 and 
there were a total of three (3) responsive and responsible Bidders.  
 
Recommendation: Shawn Franks, Facilities Engineer, and Carlos Molina, County Engineer, 
recommends awarding the contract to the lowest most responsive and responsible Bidder, 
Phelps Uniform Specialists, Inc. 
 
Contract/Agreement:  The contract term is  for two (2) initial years with three (3) one-year 
renewal options. 
 
Legal Review:  Not necessary, no agreement to review. 
 
 
 
 

         

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  3/11/2021 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations & Administrative Committee 

   

2021 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING BIDS FOR UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section; and 
 

WHEREAS, competitive bids were received for solicitation #21B-2209 on January 20, 
2021 for the following; 
 

UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations & Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bids received for the aforementioned products 
and recommends awarding contracts to the most responsive and responsible Bidder with the low 
rate, as follows:  
 

PHELPS UNIFORM SPECIALISTS, INC 
3206 HERSHEY AVE BLDG 4 
MUSCATINE, IA 52761 
 

See Bid Tab for Pricing details (RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A) 
 

WHEREAS, the Operations & Administrative Committee has determined that the 
funding for the aforementioned purchase shall be as follows: 

 

FACILITIES 12000 - 43960 
HIGHWAY 46100 - 43890 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the County Board Chairman award a two (2) year contract, with three (3) one-year 
optional renewals to PHELPS UNIFORM SPECIALISTS, INC.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Facilities Engineer, County 
Engineer, Director of Purchasing, Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 

 
 



                                                                        Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                           PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY  
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



                                                                                                 RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A 
 

BID TAB 
UNIFORM  RENTAL SERVICES – 21B-2209 

BID OPENING 1/20/2021- 2:00 P.M. 
 

VENDORS 
 Cintas 

 

Alsco, Inc. 
Phelps Uniform 
Specialists, Inc. 

CLOTHING  Price Per 
Piece  

Replacement 
Value 

Price Per 
Piece 

Replacement 
Value 

Price Per 
Piece 

Replacement 
Value 

1. Jacket - Hip-Length Three-Season $.32 $31.56 $.38 $29.67 $.22 $30.00 

2. Jeans - Dickies Carpenter $.30 $30.54 $.29 $23.79 $.25 $25.00 

3. Jeans - Dickies Duck Carpenter $.32 $25.45 $.29 $23.79 $.25 $25.00 

4. Jeans - Heavyweight $.25 $20.36 $.24 $19.48 $.25 $25.00 

5. Pants - Dura-Press Cotton Work 
Pants $.25 $23.92 $.29 $23.24 $.22 $20.00 

6. Pants - Pleated Work Pants $.22 $22.40 $.29 $23.24 $.15 $17.00 

7. Pants - Work Pants $.17 $18.32 $.20 $16.80 $.15 $17.00 

8. Shirt - Denim Shirt, Long Sleeve $.30 $25.45 $.22 $19.21 $.20 $17.00 

9. Shirt - Denim Shirt, Short Sleeve $.30 $25.45 $.20 $17.85 $.20 $17.00 

10.. Shirt - Dura-Press Cotton Work 
Shirt, Long Sleeve $.22 $18.32 $.22 $19.21 $.19 $17.00 

11. Shirt - Dura-Press Cotton Work 
Shirt, Short Sleeve $.22 $18.32 $.20 $17.85 $.19 $17.00 

12. Shirt - Shadow Check Polo- with 
Pocket $.20 $20.36 $.26 $21.25 $.20 $20.00 

13. Shirt - Striped Work Shirt, Long 
Sleeve $.17 $15.27 $.20 $16.65 $.15 $15.00 

14. Shirt - Striped Work Shirt, Short 
Sleeve $.17 $15.27 $.17 $17.21 $.15 $15.00 

MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS Price Per 
Piece 

Replacement 
Value 

Price Per 
Piece 

Replacement 
Value 

Price Per 
Piece 

Replacement 
Value 

15. TOWEL - Bath Towels - 22" x 44" $.35 $3.50 $.25 $3.50 $.08 $1.00 

16. TOWEL - Standard Bar Towels - 
16" x 19" $.12 $1.19 $.14 $1.65 $.04 $.25 

17. TOWEL - Standard Bar Towels - 
24" x 50" $N/A $N/A $.55 $7.50 $.10 $.25 

18. TOWEL- Soda $.12 $1.19 $.18 $1.70 $.06 $.25 

19. TOWEL - Standard Massage 
Towels - 16" x 27" $N/A $N/A $.15 $1.65 $.06 $.25 

20. TOWEL - Shop Towels - 18" x 18" $.08 $.41 $.07 $.40 $.03 $.15 



                                                                                                 RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A 
 

BID TAB 
UNIFORM  RENTAL SERVICES – 21B-2209 

BID OPENING 1/20/2021- 2:00 P.M. 
VENDORS 

 Cintas 
 

Alsco, Inc. 
Phelps Uniform 
Specialists, Inc. 

 Price Per 
Piece 

Replacement 
Value 

Price Per 
Piece 

Replacement 
Value 

Price Per 
Piece 

Replacement 
Value 

21. TOWEL - Shop Towels - 18" x 30" $.35 $3.50 $.09 $.65 $.05 $.15 

22. Laundry Bag $0 $0 $0 $6.00 $0 $0 

23. Clean Uniform Locker $0 $0 $3.50 $300.00 $0 $100.00 

24. Soiled Uniform Locker $0 $0 $2.00 $200.00 $0 $75.00 

EMBROIDERY  
 

Price Per 
Piece  

Price Per 
Piece  

 Price Per 
Piece  

 

25. Employee Name $1.00  
$1.50  $0  

26. County Name $1.50  
$1.75  $0  

27. Monogram Set-Up Cost $0  
$0  $0  

28. Prep Charge $1.53  
$1.00  $0  

29. Cost Per Item $N/A 
 

$3.00  $0  

 

 
 
                     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 



21-004 
County Board:  3/11/2021 

 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
21-CR-XXX 

 
SUBMITTED BY: PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY: DAVE TASSONI 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A LOCAL PUBLIC  
AGENCY AGREEMENT FOR FEDERAL PARTICIPATION FOR REHABILITATION OF 

THE ALPINE ROAD BRIDGE OVER FOREST HILLS ROAD 
AND FOR APPROPRIATING THE LOCAL SHARE OF FUNDS 

(SECTION 19-00620-00-BR) 
 

 
WHEREAS the Winnebago County Highway Department (WCHD) applied to the State of Illinois 
Department of Transportation (IDOT) for Federal Funds under the Illinois Special Bridge Program 
(ISBP) for rehabilitation of the Alpine Road Bridge over Forest Hills Road; and 
 
WHEREAS the total estimated cost for construction and construction engineering is $4,070,000; and 
the County has been selected to receive ISBP and STP-Br funds for said bridge project at 80% of 
construction and construction engineering costs for a not to exceed Federal share of $3,256,000; and 
 
WHEREAS the federal fund source requires a match of local funds, of which a total of $960,000 will 
be appropriated from the County’s Rebuild Illinois Fund, $814,000 for construction and construction 
engineering and $146,000 for a portion of the design engineering; and 
 
WHEREAS it would be in the public interest to enter into the attached Local Public Agency 
Agreement for Federal Participation (hereafter, the “AGREEMENT”) and to appropriate monies from 
the County’s Rebuild Illinois fund to cover the County’s share of the cost for this project.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago the “Local Public Agency Agreement for Federal Participation” 
and the Appropriation of the County’s share of the cost in substantially the form attached hereto; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the AGREEMENT entered into shall not become effective and 
binding unless and until the respective parties have executed them; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to prepare and 
deliver one (1) certified copy of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Treasurer, Auditor and 
Winnebago County Engineer. 

 
 



VIRTUAL ZOOM MEETING 
 

Respectfully submitted 
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
  AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
 
__________________________________       __________________________________  
Dave Tassoni, Chairman                                   Dave Tassoni, Chairman 
 
_________________________________         __________________________________ 
Angela Fellars                       Angela Fellars 
 
_________________________________         __________________________________ 
Burt Gerl                       Burt Gerl 
 
_________________________________         __________________________________ 
Dave Kelley, Vice Chairman      Dave Kelley, Vice Chairman 
 
__________________________________       __________________________________ 
Jas Bilich                                     Jas Bilich 
  
__________________________________       __________________________________ 
Jim Webster                                     Jim Webster 
  
__________________________________       __________________________________ 
Kevin McCarthy                             Kevin McCarthy                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois this _____ day of _____________, 2021. 
 
 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joe Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 























 

Public Safety & 
Judiciary 

Committee 



 
 

   
    Executive Summary 

 

 4517 North Main St  |  Rockford, IL 61103  |  www.wcasrock.org  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4100  |  Fax: (815) 319-4101  |  Email: bfrazier@wincoil.us 

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 

Prepared By: Animal Services Department, Department Administrator Brett Frazier 

Committee: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date: February 17, 2021  

Ordinance Amendment Title:  Ordinance Amending Low Income Eligibility Verification Requirements and 
Adoption Fee Schedule at Animal Services     

County Code:   Winnebago County Code, Chapter 14 - Animals 

Board Meeting Date:   February 25, 2021 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    NA                           Appropriation Amount:   $ 0 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                                Budget Impact:    

 
Background Information:  
Currently county code requires that the Animal Services Department utilize WIC eligibility standards, including 

income and household size, in order to verify low-income status for residents attempting to access department 

low-income services.  These services include the spay/neuter voucher program and owner requested euthanasia.  

In order to assess eligibility, currently code requires that a resident prove eligibility by assembling documents 

that demonstrate household income and number of persons in the household so that our clerks can then assess if 

documentation is sufficient and if the resident is eligible.  This change would simply adopt the language of state 

statute related to these same animal related services and allow county residents who can prove they are eligible 

for the assistance programs noted in statute to also be approved for low-income services provided by the 

Animal Services Department.   

 

The statute refers to “low income residents who are eligible for the Food Stamp Program or Social Security 

Disability Benefits Program” (Food Stamp Program is now called SNAP but is also still referred to often as 

Food Stamps).  The easiest way for those residents to prove eligibility for those programs would be to show that 

they are approved by those programs for those benefits with a card or approval/determination letter.  This 

allows our department to avoid redoing the work of eligibility verification already done by those programs.   

 

The dog adoption fee rate has not been adjusted in many years.  Even after this adjustment, the Animal Services 

Department’s dog adoption fee is low compared to other dog adoption facilities in the region.  A modest 

adjustment in dog adoption fee will cover more of the costs associated with the care and adoption of dogs and 

the operation of the department generally.  This adjustment will not have a negative impact on positive 

outcomes for dogs available for adoption at Animal Services nor will it negatively impact the number of days a 

dog spends at Animal Services prior to adoption.   

http://www.wcasrock.org/
http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:RBNHAdministrator@wincoil.us


 
 

   
    Executive Summary 

 

 4517 North Main St  |  Rockford, IL 61103  |  www.wcasrock.org  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4100  |  Fax: (815) 319-4101  |  Email: bfrazier@wincoil.us 

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
Recommendation:  
To approve and adopt the amendment to county code as presented.  
 
 
Contract/Agreement:  
NA 
 
 
Legal Review:   
The State’s Attorney’s Office assisted in drafting the ordinance amendment. 
 
 
Follow-Up: 
If approved, the Animal Services Department will update public information relating to the areas of code to be 
amended.  Staff will be trained on the new income eligibility verification requirements for Department 
services for which the verification of a household as low-income is required.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

         

http://www.wcasrock.org/
http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:RBNHAdministrator@wincoil.us


1 
 

County Board Meeting 
February 25, 2021 

 
SPONSORED BY:  BURT GERL 

 
ORDINANCE 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2021 CO ___ 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING ADOPTION FEE SCHEDULE AND LOW INCOME 

ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION REQUIREMENTS AT ANIMAL SERVICES  
 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 
amend their ordinances related to the fee schedule for adopting dogs and low income 
eligibility verification at Animal Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances sets 

forth the fee schedule for adoptions and other services at Winnebago County Animal 
Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Animal Services is recommending increasing the fee for dog 

adoptions from $110.00 to $150.00 in order to cover more of the costs associated with 
adoption; and 

 
WHEREAS, to align with the Animal Control Act and simplify the process of 

verifying the income of county residents who may be eligible for low income services, 
Animal Services is recommending an amendment to allow proof of eligibility for the 
Food Stamp Program or the Social Security Disability Program, rather than following 
established WIC guidelines. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 14, Article IV, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago 
County Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 14-116. - Fee schedule. 

The following fees and charges shall be paid prior to the rendition of services or release 
of the animal: 

Service Fee 
(1)  Dog registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the dog has been spayed or neutered 1 , or 
the dog is under one year of age, annually .....$ 25.00 

b. If the dog is fertile, annually .....40.00 



2 
 

c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, 
annually .....25.00 

d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 
(2)  Cat registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the cat has been spayed or neutered 1 , or the 
cat is under one year of age, annually .....20.00 

b. If the cat is fertile, annually .....30.00 
c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, 

annually .....20.00 
d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 

(3)  Vaccination for reclaimed animals .....12.00 
(4)  Room and board: ..... 

a. Per day, per dog 2 .....12.00 
b. Per day, per cat 2 .....8.00 
c. Per day, per animal quarantined for biting 2 .....20.00 
d. Per day, per cat quarantined for biting 2 .....15.00 

(5)  Biting animals: 
a. Veterinary examination for biter animals .....25.00 
b. Owner release of biter animals .....No charge 

(6)  Handling charge for impounded animals: 
a. Animals wearing current registration tags, or having a department-approved 

identification implant, at the time of impoundment: ..... 
For first offense .....15.00 
For second offense .....50.00 
For any subsequent offense .....75.00 

b. Animals not wearing current registration tags, nor having a department-
approved identification implant, at the time of impoundment .....35.00 

(7)  Adoption: 
a. Dogs: All dogs .....150.00110.00 
b. Cats: ..... 

Cats up to 1 year old .....85.00 
Cats 1 year and older .....40.00 
All dogs and cats shall be spayed or neutered, registered, vaccinated, and 
receive preventative health care before adoption. 

c. Exotic: 
Preventative health care .....20.00 

d. Small mammal: 
Preventative health care .....7.00 

(8)  Euthanasia per dog or cat at owner's request for low income only3: 
a. Cat, brought in to facility .....37.00 
b. Cat, pick up .....55.00 
c. Dog, brought in to facility .....50.00 
d. Dog, pick up .....60.00 

(9)  Owner release of unwanted animals: 
a. Where the owner is a resident of the county: 

1. Per adult dog .....25.00 



3 
 

2. Per adult cat .....20.00 
b. Where the owner is a resident of the county, per puppy or kitten under three 

months of age .....5.00 
c. For animals other than dogs or cats brought to the facility .....7.00 
d. For dog, cat or other animal picked up at owner's home in the county, per dog, 

cat or other animal .....35.00 
e. For each additional puppy or kitten under three months of age picked up at 

owner's home in the county .....5.00 
(10)  Disposal of dead animals: 

a. Dogs brought to the facility .....25.00 
b. Dogs picked up by officer .....45.00 
c. Cats brought to the facility .....15.00 
d. Cats picked up by officer .....35.00 

(11)  Duplicate license fee .....5.00 
(12)  Microchip per dog or cat .....35.00 
(13)  2nd offense owned running at large fees: 

a. Spay of dog .....175.00 
b. Neuter of dog .....145.00 
c. Additional fine .....25.00 

(14)  Low income only3spay/neuter voucher .....20.00 
 

1  Acceptable evidence of alteration consists of certification by the veterinarian 
performing the alteration procedure or a notarized statement made by the seller of 
the animal indicating that it had been spayed or neutered while in his/her 
possession. 
2  For any part of a day that the animal is in the custody of the shelter. 
3  Low income only follows established WIC guidelinescounty residents who are 
eligible for the Food Stamp Program or Social Security Disability Benefits 
Program. 
 

The chairman of the county board is authorized to enact a temporary registration fee 
reduction at his or her discretion, in order to promote compliance with sections 14-
66 and 14-67 of this code, provided a) that any such reduction complies with Section 3 
of the Illinois Animal Control Act (510 ILCS 5/3) as now enacted, or hereafter 
amended, including maintaining a minimum differential often $10.00 between altered 
and unaltered animals, with $10.00 of that differential to be deposited county animal 
population control fund or in the state's pet population control fund and b) that any such 
reduction is enacted to assist low-income pet owners to become in compliance with 
sections 14-66 and 14-67 of this Code. 
 
The animal services administrator is authorized to modify adoption fees set forth in 
subsection (7) above, and room and board fees set forth in subsection (4) above, and 
handling charge fees set forth in subsection (6) above, to promote the reduction in the 
number of animals being held at the county shelter. The animal services administrator 
shall provide a report to the county administrator each month which sets forth the fees 

https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA


4 
 

that have been modified, or waived in each subsection above, including the total values 
of modifications and waivers in each subsection. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon signing. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall provide 

a certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the County Administrator and the 
Animal Services Administrator. 

 
   

Respectfully submitted, 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
AGREE      DISAGREE 

 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Burt Gerl, Chairman     Burt Gerl, Chairman   
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Aaron Booker      Aaron Booker 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Kevin McCarthy     Kevin McCarthy  
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Brad Lindmark     Brad Lindmark 
    
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Tim Nabors      Tim Nabors 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dave KelleyAngie Goral                                Angie Goral Dave 
Kelley 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dorothy ReddJas Bilich                               Dorothy Redd 
 Jas Bilich 
 



5 
 

 
 
 

APPROVED this _____ day of ___________________, 2021 by the County 
Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois. 
 
    
  
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



1 
 

County Board Meeting 
February 25, 2021 

 
SPONSORED BY:  BURT GERL 

 
ORDINANCE 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2021 CO ___ 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING ADOPTION FEE SCHEDULE AND LOW INCOME 

ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION REQUIREMENTS AT ANIMAL SERVICES  
 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 
amend their ordinances related to the fee schedule for adopting dogs and low income 
eligibility verification at Animal Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances sets 

forth the fee schedule for adoptions and other services at Winnebago County Animal 
Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Animal Services is recommending increasing the fee for dog 

adoptions from $110.00 to $150.00 in order to cover more of the costs associated with 
adoption; and 

 
WHEREAS, to align with the Animal Control Act and simplify the process of 

verifying the income of county residents who may be eligible for low income services, 
Animal Services is recommending an amendment to allow proof of eligibility for the 
Food Stamp Program or the Social Security Disability Program, rather than following 
established WIC guidelines. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 14, Article IV, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago 
County Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 14-116. - Fee schedule. 

The following fees and charges shall be paid prior to the rendition of services or release 
of the animal: 

Service Fee 
(1)  Dog registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the dog has been spayed or neutered 1 , or 
the dog is under one year of age, annually .....$ 25.00 

b. If the dog is fertile, annually .....40.00 



2 
 

c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, 
annually .....25.00 

d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 
(2)  Cat registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the cat has been spayed or neutered 1 , or the 
cat is under one year of age, annually .....20.00 

b. If the cat is fertile, annually .....30.00 
c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, 

annually .....20.00 
d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 

(3)  Vaccination for reclaimed animals .....12.00 
(4)  Room and board: ..... 

a. Per day, per dog 2 .....12.00 
b. Per day, per cat 2 .....8.00 
c. Per day, per animal quarantined for biting 2 .....20.00 
d. Per day, per cat quarantined for biting 2 .....15.00 

(5)  Biting animals: 
a. Veterinary examination for biter animals .....25.00 
b. Owner release of biter animals .....No charge 

(6)  Handling charge for impounded animals: 
a. Animals wearing current registration tags, or having a department-approved 

identification implant, at the time of impoundment: ..... 
For first offense .....15.00 
For second offense .....50.00 
For any subsequent offense .....75.00 

b. Animals not wearing current registration tags, nor having a department-
approved identification implant, at the time of impoundment .....35.00 

(7)  Adoption: 
a. Dogs: All dogs .....150.00 
b. Cats: ..... 

Cats up to 1 year old .....85.00 
Cats 1 year and older .....40.00 
All dogs and cats shall be spayed or neutered, registered, vaccinated, and 
receive preventative health care before adoption. 

c. Exotic: 
Preventative health care .....20.00 

d. Small mammal: 
Preventative health care .....7.00 

(8)  Euthanasia per dog or cat at owner's request for low income only3: 
a. Cat, brought in to facility .....37.00 
b. Cat, pick up .....55.00 
c. Dog, brought in to facility .....50.00 
d. Dog, pick up .....60.00 

(9)  Owner release of unwanted animals: 
a. Where the owner is a resident of the county: 

1. Per adult dog .....25.00 



3 
 

2. Per adult cat .....20.00 
b. Where the owner is a resident of the county, per puppy or kitten under three 

months of age .....5.00 
c. For animals other than dogs or cats brought to the facility .....7.00 
d. For dog, cat or other animal picked up at owner's home in the county, per dog, 

cat or other animal .....35.00 
e. For each additional puppy or kitten under three months of age picked up at 

owner's home in the county .....5.00 
(10)  Disposal of dead animals: 

a. Dogs brought to the facility .....25.00 
b. Dogs picked up by officer .....45.00 
c. Cats brought to the facility .....15.00 
d. Cats picked up by officer .....35.00 

(11)  Duplicate license fee .....5.00 
(12)  Microchip per dog or cat .....35.00 
(13)  2nd offense owned running at large fees: 

a. Spay of dog .....175.00 
b. Neuter of dog .....145.00 
c. Additional fine .....25.00 

(14)  Low income only3spay/neuter voucher .....20.00 
 

1  Acceptable evidence of alteration consists of certification by the veterinarian 
performing the alteration procedure or a notarized statement made by the seller of 
the animal indicating that it had been spayed or neutered while in his/her 
possession. 
2  For any part of a day that the animal is in the custody of the shelter. 
3  Low income county residents who are eligible for the Food Stamp Program or 
Social Security Disability Benefits Program. 
 

The chairman of the county board is authorized to enact a temporary registration fee 
reduction at his or her discretion, in order to promote compliance with sections 14-
66 and 14-67 of this code, provided a) that any such reduction complies with Section 3 
of the Illinois Animal Control Act (510 ILCS 5/3) as now enacted, or hereafter 
amended, including maintaining a minimum differential often $10.00 between altered 
and unaltered animals, with $10.00 of that differential to be deposited county animal 
population control fund or in the state's pet population control fund and b) that any such 
reduction is enacted to assist low-income pet owners to become in compliance with 
sections 14-66 and 14-67 of this Code. 
 
The animal services administrator is authorized to modify adoption fees set forth in 
subsection (7) above, and room and board fees set forth in subsection (4) above, and 
handling charge fees set forth in subsection (6) above, to promote the reduction in the 
number of animals being held at the county shelter. The animal services administrator 
shall provide a report to the county administrator each month which sets forth the fees 
that have been modified, or waived in each subsection above, including the total values 
of modifications and waivers in each subsection. 

https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA


4 
 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon signing. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall provide 

a certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the County Administrator and the 
Animal Services Administrator. 

 
   

Respectfully submitted, 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
AGREE      DISAGREE 

 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Burt Gerl, Chairman     Burt Gerl, Chairman   
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Aaron Booker      Aaron Booker 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Kevin McCarthy     Kevin McCarthy  
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Brad Lindmark     Brad Lindmark 
    
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Tim Nabors      Tim Nabors 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Angie Goral      Angie Goral 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd      Dorothy Redd 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

APPROVED this _____ day of ___________________, 2021 by the County 
Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois. 
 
    
  
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: March 11, 2021 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2; Byron Station, Unit NOS. 1 and 2; Calvert Cliffs 

Nuclear Plant, Units 1 and 2; and R.E. Ginna Nuclear Power Plant – Proposed 
Alternative to use the American Society of Mechanical Engineers Boiler and 
Pressure Vessel Code Case N-885 (EPID L-2020-LLR-0069) 
 

b. Federal Register / Vol. 86, No. 34 / Tuesday, February 23, 2021 / Notices 
 

c. Request for Additional Information RE:Byron/Dresden – Proposed Changes to Site 
Emergency Pants to Support Post-Shutdown and Permanently Defueled 
Conditions (EPID-2020-LLA-0240 & EPID-2020-LLA-0237) 

 

d. Byron Station, Units 1 and 2 – Confirmation of Initial License Examination 
 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from the Illinois Department of Transportation a 
letter regarding Notification to Maintain.  

 
3. County Clerk Gummow received from the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency a 

letter regarding Rocknel Fastener Inc (Illinois EPA BOA ID# 201030AZX) Construction 
Permit (21010014); Lifetime Operating Permit (89070056)   

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
4. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communications the Quarterly Franchise 

Fee Payment covering the period from October 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 for the 
following: 

 
a. Township of Harlem 
b. Township of Rockton 
c. Township of Roscoe 

 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Executive Summary - Brett Hruby
	Letter of Interest - Brett Hruby
	Letter of Recommendation - Brett Hruby
	Resume - Brett Hruby
	Executive Summary - Al Bach Sr.
	Letter of Interest - Al Bach Sr.
	Letter of Recommendation - Al Bach Sr.
	Resume - Al Bach Sr.
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Extending Deadline for Filing Applications for Senior Citizens Assessment Freeze Homestead Exemption
	Resolution Opposing State Reductions to LGDF Revenue
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Emergency Rental Assistance Program
	Budget Ordinance to Fund Winn. Cty. CJCC Program
	Budget Ordinance for Vehicle Replacement
	Resolution Approving IGA for U.S. Dept. of Treasury Emergency Rental Assistance Program
	Zoning Committee
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Executive Summary
	Resolution to Change Hours of Cty. Clerk's Office on Election Day
	Executive Summary
	Resolution Awarding Bids for Uniform Rental Services
	Exhibit A
	Public Works Committee
	21-004 Resolution Authorizing Execution of a Local Public Agency Agreement
	Public Safety & Judiciary Committee
	Executive Summary
	Ordinance - Redline copy
	Ordinance - Clean copy
	Unfinished Busiess
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



